
Please Note: These minutes are pending Board approval. 
Board of Education 

Newtown, Connecticut 
 

Minutes of the Board of Education meeting on January 11, 2018 at 7:30 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers, 3 Primrose Street.      
          

M. Ku, Chair     L. Rodrigue 
R. Harriman-Stites, Vice Chair  J. Evans Davila 
D. Cruson, Secretary   R. Bienkowski 
D. Leidlein (absent)             10 Staff 
J. Vouros (absent)    2 Public 
A. Clure       1 Press 

 D. Delia 
 
Mrs. Ku called the meeting to order at 7:32 p.m. 
Item 1 – Pledge of Allegiance 
Mrs. Ku stated that there is a regular Board meeting Tuesday, January 16 and the next budget 
workshop will be held Tuesday, January 23 at Reed.  The January 30 public hearing and budget 
discussion will be January 30 with the budget adoption meeting on February 1. 
 
Dr. Rodrigue spoke about requests from the previous meeting which included information on the 
textbooks and supplies which were pre-purchased.  There were corrected pages on enrollment 
as well as a list of the supplies for Sandy Hook and Head O’Meadow Schools.   
Mr. Bienkowski provided the corrected technology page which changed the amount in the 
Superintendent’s adjustments on page 199.  
 
Item 2 – Newtown High School Budget 
Mr. Roach spoke about the points of pride for the high school.  Communication is top notch, the 
safety of the building is most important, Project Lead the Way is continuing, Project Adventure 
continues to be successful, and our athletic, music, theater, and unified sports program are 
competitive.   
 
Budget drivers include school improvements to meet State mandates, having resources needed 
to maintain a high level of quality, class size and enrollment across the disciplines, and 
contractual obligations. 
 
Mr. Delia noted that travel and mileage was up $22,000. 
Mr. Roach said that the contractual rates and mileage costs increase each year. 
 
Mr. Bienkowski said a big driver for high school travel is the sports program and this year we 
used pay for play money to subsidize some of the sports and will use it again next year.  There 
is a need to boost the local contribution for these trips and there is a 3% rate increase built in. 
 
Mr. Cruson thought pay for play was going to zero. 
Mr. Bienkowski said it was going to zero on the revenue side of the budget so we don’t need to 
give any money to the town. 
 
Mr. Clure asked how losing a teacher would factor in with subjects as math seems to have the 
most crowded classes.   
Mr. Roach said we have many different levels and sections.  You look at the overall numbers.   
Dr. Rodrigue said when you pull a teacher at the high school there are so many sections in a 
course we know we will be alright with average class size.   
 



Board of Education    -2-    January 11, 2018 
 
Mr. Delia asked how the decision is made on how much money to pay for a sport and if it was 
even across the boards. 
Mr. Roach said that every sport is different and the costs depend on the sport.  Football uses 
more equipment so the cost is more than for cross country which has light uniforms and no 
equipment.  Not every sport needs as much money for their season.  Also some sports have 
competitions which need to cover those costs. 
Dr. Rodrigue stated that some have more meets and championships.  All sports are not equal 
with equipment and travel. 
 
Mr. Clure asked if adding another trainer was discussed.  Contact sports are held at Treadwell 
and the high school at the same time. 
Dr. Rodrigue said it would be based on need but there are no issues and an additional trainer 
was not requested.   
 
Mr. Clure said a girls’ field hockey player was hurt this fall at Treadwell.  It might be good to 
have an EMT there. 
Dr. Rodrigue feels we should discuss what the trainer’s role is because there is a distinct 
difference in what she does compared to medical personnel. 
Mr. Clure asked for a discussion to see if there was a need.  
Mrs. Ku also asked for this information. 
 
Mr. Clure spoke about the high cost to participate in ice hockey and thought there might be a 
way to help parents with this cost.   
Dr. Rodrigue would like Matt Memoli to weigh into this subject. 
 
Mr. Clure also asked about the expense for participation in the marching band. 
Mr. Bienkowski said we do fund instruments and the big cost items but not the day-to-day 
operation.   
Dr. Rodrigue said we support the large instruments with the highest costs by leasing them. 
 
Mrs. Harriman-Stites referred to the instructional supplies cost for the biomedical courses. 
Mr. Roach confirmed that and mentioned that we received a $9,900 grant toward that program. 
 
Mrs. Harriman-Stites asked what was important to him that did not get in the high school 
budget. 
Mr. Roach said this is a fair budget and the high school was in a very good spot.  
 
Mr. Clure thought the Athletic Director’s salary was part of central office.  
Mr. Bienkowski said it is included in the high school budget.   
 
Mr. Delia asked if he played a role in the middle school sports. 
Mr. Bienkowski said his position is not accounted for in the middle school budget. 
 
Mr. Clure asked if he could be listed in the middle school and high school.   
Mrs. Harriman-Stites felt it just matters what his job description is and that he reports to the 
superintendent. 
 
Mr. Delia thought that if we pull a little money from the high school budget that savings could go 
into the sports program. 
Mrs. Ku suggested looking into that for the last discussion. 
 
 



Board of Education    -3-    January 11, 2018 
 
Item 3 – Special Education Budget 
Mrs. Petersen spoke about the special education budget.  As of this week we have 581 special 
education students which are 13% of our school population.  We are following the state trend of 
going up. 
 
Mr. Delia asked what steps we can take to address the cost of tuition. 
Mrs. Petersen said we piloted two programs to address students out-placed and both have been 
very successful.  Due to the Novo Grant we implemented a program at the high school level and 
were able to hire another special education teacher to help students in the district.   
 
Mrs. Ku asked if it also affected the homebound tutoring costs. 
Mrs. Petersen said we have reduced homebound tutoring but many have medical issues where 
they cannot come to school.   
 
Item 4 –Pupil Personnel Budget 
Mrs. Petersen added two of the four elementary counselors to her budget.  Two are from the 
Novo Grant.  The Reed counselor, also on a grant, was moved to her budget. 
 
Mrs. Harriman-Stites said it would be helpful to get a clearer picture of the services at each 
school, what we are offering in our budget or a grant, and also for how many years the positions 
are funded.   
 
Mr. Delia asked if we were prepared for the ELL students. 
Mrs. Petersen said we currently have two students from Puerto Rico.  She is the homeless 
liaison for the district which is why she had to report it to the state. 
 
Mrs. Ku asked if there was anything she wanted in her budget. 
Mrs. Petersen said this was a good budget and is proud of what we have maintained.  She 
would only look to have a program with other districts. 
 
Item 5 – Health Budget 
Head Nurse, Anne Dalton, spoke about the health budget.  There are nine nursing offices in the 
district and they continue to see a high volume of students but it is coming down gradually.  
Most of the budget changes are extra time for nurses.  Unified sports need nurses and they are 
also sending nurses to Washington with the middle school trip.     
 
Mr. Clure said more students at the middle school are involved in sports which could cause a 
possible increase in visits to the nurse’s office. 
Mrs. Dalton said she expected that they have seen some sports injuries.  At this time we do not 
have a nurse at the middle school for afterschool sports. 
 
Mr. Delia spoke about unified sports starting at the middle school. 
Mrs. Dalton said a nurse is required for the high school group because there are a number of 
students who have active seizure disorders. 
 
Item 6 – Curriculum Budget 
Mrs. Evans Davila said this budget has been planned according to needs in the district and 
leadership goals around social emotional learning and concept based instruction as well as 
preparation of NGSS and the expansion of world language.    
 
 
 



Board of Education    -4-    January 11, 2018 
 
Mr. Cruson questioned the elementary foreign language curriculum writing and if it would be 
less hours if both the grade three and grade four Spanish curriculum writing was done at the 
same time. 
Mrs. Evans Davila said we were taking an existing curriculum and converting it to concept-
based over the summer.  That would not work for this year. 
 
Mr. Delia asked about the TEAM program for provisional certification which is not being funded 
any longer and if we will do this in-house.   
Mrs. Evans Davila said there was conflicting information coming to us.  It is staying in place and 
we have been given different pathways to do what we are doing now, go with something the 
RESCS have developed or develop our own pathway.   
 
Mr. Clure asked if any of the workshops included things that other districts are doing that they 
are getting success with possibly related to social media and cell phones. 
 
Mrs. Evans Davila said that tech is involved in legal seminars and share with the A-team and 
security.  In Title IX coordinator training we discuss whether the SEL curriculum had addressed 
interacting with others.  She is not looking to sending people to those.   
Dr. Rodrigue said that principals bring in consultants to faculty meetings and professional 
development days have had speakers.  Staff could also put in for a conference that fits their 
needs. 
 
Mr. Delia asked who was being paid to attend the NGSS summer institutes. 
Mrs. Evans Davila said the Connecticut Science Center is coming to Newtown. 
 
Item 7 – Public Participation 
Mr. Delia complimented the departments for their collaboration on the budget and consideration 
of the Board. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Clure moved that the meeting adjourn.  Mrs. Harriman-Stites seconded. 
Motion passes unanimously. 
 
Item 8 – Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 10:00 p.m. 
 
      Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
              Daniel J. Cruson, Jr. 
                      Secretary 
      
 




















	1-11-18 minutes
	1-11-18 minutes attachments

